
For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available upon request..  TTY access number is 711 to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

AGENDA 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Regular Meeting 

Circuit Courtroom 
Fluvanna Courts Building 

February 16
th

 2011 

7:00 p.m. 
 

  1-CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 

  2-REPORTS 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

 

   3-PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 (5 minutes each) 

 

  4-CONSENT AGENDA 
TAB P  Minutes of January 19

th
, 2011 – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

TAB Q  Minutes of February 2
nd

, 2011 – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

   5-ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

  None   

 

   6-PUBLIC HEARING  

TAB R  An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 2 Article 7 of the Fluvanna County Code Sections 2-7-2 and 2-7-3,  

 Concerning the Adoption and Use of the County’s Official Seal”. -  

 

   7-PRESENTATIONS (normally not to exceed 10-minute limitation) 

 

   8-ACTION MATTERS 

TAB S  Resolution to VPSA for Available Refund Savings – Renee Hoover, Finance Director 

TAB T  Pet Sheltering Grant – Jackie Meyers, CSA Program Manager 

TAB U  Kent Store Fire House update – John Robins, Public Works Director 

 

   9-OLD BUSINESS 

 

 10-NEW BUSINESS 

TAB V  5yr Financial Forecast – Steve Jacobs, Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates 

 

11-PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (5 minutes each) 

 

 12-CLOSED MEETING 

   

13-ADJOURN 
 

 

 

 

********** 
Pledge of Allegiance 

I pledge allegiance to the flag  

of the United States of America  

and to the Republic for which it stands,  

one nation, under God, indivisible, 

 with liberty and justice for all. 

 

 

 

********** 



For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available upon request..  TTY access number is 711 to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

PUBLIC HEARING RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

1) PURPOSE 

The purpose of a public hearing is to receive testimony from the public on certain resolutions, ordinances or 

amendments prior to taking action.  A hearing is not a dialogue or debate.  Its express purpose is to receive 

additional facts, comments and opinion on  subject items. 

2) SPEAKERS 

 Speakers should approach the lectern so they may be visible and audible to the Board. 

 Each speaker should clearly state his/her name and address. 

 All comments should be directed to the Board. 

 All questions should be directed to the Chairman.  Members of the Board are not expected to respond to 

questions, and response to questions shall be made at the Chairman's discretion.  Speakers are encouraged to 

contact staff regarding unresolved concerns or to receive additional information. 

 Speakers with questions are encouraged to call County staff prior to the public hearing. 

 Speakers should be brief and avoid repetition of previously presented comments. 

        3) ACTION 

At the conclusion of the public hearing on each item, the Chairman will close the public hearing.  The Board will 

proceed with its deliberation and will act on or formally postpone action on such item prior to proceeding to other 

agenda items.  Further public comment after the public hearing has been closed generally will not be permitted. 

 

 

********** 

ORDER 

 

1. It shall be the duty of the Chairman to maintain order and decorum at meetings.  The Chairman shall speak to points of 

order in preference to all other members. 

 

2. In maintaining decorum and propriety of conduct, the Chairman shall not be challenged and no debate shall be allowed 

until after the Chairman declares that order has been restored.  In the event the Board wishes to debate the matter of the 

disorder or the bringing of order; the regular business may be suspended by vote of the Board to discuss the matter. 

 

3. No member or citizen shall be allowed to use abusive language, excessive noise, or in any way incite persons to use such 

tactics.  The Chairman and/or the County Administrator shall be the judge of such breaches, however, the Board may 

vote to overrule both. 

 

4. When a person engages in such breaches, the Chairman shall order the person’s removal from the building, or may order 

the person to stand silent, or may, if necessary, order the person removed from the County property.  



 

 

MOTION: I move the regular meeting minutes of the Fluvanna County Board of 

Supervisors for Wednesday, January 19
th

, 2011 be adopted. 
 

 

AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  February 16
th

 2011 

 

 

SUBJECT: Adoption of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors regular meeting 

minutes. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

TIMING: Routine 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

DISCUSSION:  None 

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  None 

 

Staff:  Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

Copy:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

Comments: 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, January 19
th

 2011 

Page 1 

 1 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

January 19
th

 2011 

7:00 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice-Chairman - arrived late 

    Joe Chesser 

    Donald W. Weaver 

Mozell H. Booker 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT: None 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

    William Tanner, Assistant County Attorney 

    Renee Hoover, Finance Director 

    Pat Groot, Grants Administrator 

    Amy Hall, Permits Clerk 

 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 
Chairman Gooch called the regular meeting of January 19

th
 2011 to order at 7:00 p.m., in the 

Circuit Courtroom of the New Courts Building in Palmyra, Virginia and the Pledge of 

Allegiance was recited; after which Chairman Gooch called for a moment of silence. 

 

Chairman Gooch delayed the interviews and moved to the Reports on the agenda until Mr. 

Kenney arrived. 

  

REPORTS 

Mr. Jay Scudder, County Administrator, reported on the following topics: 

 Carysbrook Renovation – pre-bid meeting was held on January 13
th

, 2011. The 

construction schedule was revised; Mr. Robins will present the board with an update at 

the February 16
th

, 2011 meeting. 

 Fork Union Firehouse – received proposals on January 10
th

, 2011; four firms were 

selected for interviews and will be presented to the Board at the February 16
th

, 2011 

meeting. 

 Kent Store Firehouse – moved into new building and working on completing the site 

work and new sign. 

 Results of Comparative Radio Analysis Study – scheduled for this evening was deferred 

due to a lack of degree of analysis on the existing infrastructure.  The consultants are 

making changes to include that information and will present at a later time. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the first round of public comments. 

The following citizens addressed the Board: 

 Ida Swanson, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in support of not restructuring the 

Virginia Cooperative Extension. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, January 19
th

 2011 

Page 2 

 2 

 Ms. Marian Huber, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in support of not restructuring 

the Virginia Cooperative Extension and keeping this service local. 

 Mr. Sam Patterson, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in support of not restructuring 

the Virginia Cooperative Extension.  He supports funding and writing letters to Virginia 

Tech. 

 Ms. Nancy Fund, Cunningham District – addressed the Board in support of not 

restructuring the Virginia Cooperative Extension. 

 Mr. David Tatman, Columbia District – addressed the Board in support of the Virginia 

Cooperative Extension. 

 Mr. Dave Miller, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in support of not restructuring 

the Virginia Cooperative Extension. 

 Mr. Jeff Haislip, Rivanna District – addressed the Board as Commonwealth Attorney and 

parent of a 4-H member, in support of not restructuring the Virginia Cooperative 

Extension.  

 Mr. Mel Sheridan, Columbia District – addressed the Board in support of not 

restructuring the Virginia Cooperative Extension. 

 Mr. Ryant Washington, Columbia District – addressed the Board in support of not 

restructuring the Virginia Cooperative Extension, beneficial program. 

 Mr. Marvin Moss, Columbia District – addressed the Board in support of not 

restructuring the Virginia Cooperative Extension.   Please support this program any way 

you can. 

 Ms. Marie Taylor, Palmyra District– addressed the Board in support of not restructuring 

the Virginia Cooperative Extension.   

 Ms. Connie Dombrowski, Rivanna District– representing the Master Gardeners, 

addressed the Board in support of not restructuring the Virginia Cooperative Extension. 

 Ms. Pat Bozza, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in support of not restructuring the 

Virginia Cooperative Extension.  In the best interest of the extension office keep it in 

Fluvanna County 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the first round of public 

comments. 

 

Mr. Kenney arrived at 7:33 

 

PRESENTATIONS FOR RIVANNA DISTRICT BOS MEMBER 

The following 8 candidates addressed the board in reference to why they would like to serve as a 

Board of Supervisor member. 

 

 Mr. Jeffrey Hans Braun 

 Mr. Chris Fairchild 

 Mrs. Debra Y. Kurre – withdrew her application 

 Ms. Gequetta G. Murray-Key 

 Mr. Steve Nichols 

 Mr. Lyle Pitt 

 Mr. Samuel E. Richardson 

 Mr. Joe Ronan 

 

After all candidates spoke Chairman Gooch opened the floor for nominations. 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, January 19
th

 2011 

Page 3 

 3 

MOTION: 

  Mr. Chesser moved to nominate Mr. Chris Fairchild to fill the vacant Rivanna 

District position.  Mr. Kenney seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 

Weaver, Booker, Chesser and Kenney.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None.    

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items were pulled from the consent agenda: 

 Minutes of January 5
th

 2011 

 Approve Payment of Fluvanna’s Legal Fees for James River Water Authority (JRWA) 

The following items were approved under the consent agenda: 

  

MOTION: 

  Mr. Kenney moved to approve the consent agenda which consisted of: 

 Federal Grant Signatory Authority 

Mr. Chesser seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 

Weaver, Booker, Chesser and Kenney.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None.    

 

Minutes of January 5
th

 2011 

Mr. Weaver requested the minutes of January 5
th

, 2011 be deferred to the February 2
nd

, 2011 

meeting to allow time to make corrections. 

 

Approve Payment of Fluvanna’s Legal Fees for James River Water Authority (JRWA) 

Mr. Kenney questioned whether this would be the last bill from the JRWA and what exactly this 

bill is for.   Mr. Chesser advised the Board that he had spoken with the firm, and was told the 

case with Mr. Johnson was dismissed, and this would be the last bill.  Ms. Hoover mentioned 

that an audit was done last year, and it is possible there will be a bill for that.   

 

MOTION: 

Mr. Weaver moved to approve payment of legal fees in the amount of $326.50 for 

the James River Water Authority (JRWA), from the Board of Supervisors 

contingency fund 4-1000091070-5850.  Mr. Kenney seconded.  The motion 

carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Booker, Chesser and Kenney.   

NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None.    
 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

None 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

None 

 

PRESENTATIONS: 

Region Ten Community Service Board 

Ms. Barbara Bartels, Region Ten Community Service Board Member, provided the Board with 

information about likely changes to how Medicaid will be managed at the State Level.  The local 

impact of these changes is likely to be significant, hoping to begin an ongoing conversation with 

council that facilitates community planning of a local system of care.  Requested the Board help 

lobby the State Legislature in favor of CSB self-management of Medicaid, partner with local 

stakeholders, to proactively plan a local system of care and support the ACSB proposal to 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, January 19
th

 2011 

Page 4 

 4 

manage the state Medicaid dollars which will prevent private “for-profit” HMOs from taking 

scarce resources from our community.   

 

Results of Comparative Radio Analysis Study 

Deferred  

 

Virginia Cooperative Extension (VCE) Fluvanna County 

Mr. John Thompson, Virginia Cooperative Extension Agent, provided the Board with an 

overview of the VCE Faculty and Staff, who provide services to Fluvanna County, along with 

the programs offered.  Mr. Thompson also updated the Board on the impact the proposed 

restructuring of the VCE office will have on Fluvanna County.  Mr. Steve Pence, Extension 

Leadership Council Chairman, spoke in reference to the restructuring of the VCE.  When offices 

leave the county you lose the contact; when you lose the contact you lose the service.  Please 

support the extension service. 

 

The Board discussed the importance of having the VCE office in Fluvanna County.  Mr. 

Scudder, County Administrator, suggested writing a draft letter for the Board to Virginia Tech, 

in reference to reconsidering the restructuring of the VCE.  Mr. Scudder will have the letter 

available for review at the next meeting. 

 

Mid Fiscal Year 2011 Financial Report Update as of December 31, 2010 

Ms. Renee Hoover, Finance Director, provided the Board with a Mid Fiscal year 2011 Financial 

Report Update as of December 31, 2010. 

 

ACTION MATTERS 
Authorize Request for Proposal (RFP) for Audit Services 

MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved to authorize the issuance of the “Request for Proposal for 

Audit Services,” as reviewed by the County Attorney.  Mr. Weaver seconded.  

The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Booker, Chesser 

and Kenney.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None.    

 

OLD BUSINESS 

Ms. Booker thanked the board members for their concern and get well wishes during her time of 

illness. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Proposal Authorization for Envoy of Fork Union, LLC 

 

 MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved to authorize attached resolution as amended.  Ms. Booker 

Seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, 

Booker, Chesser and Kenney.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None.    

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #2 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the second round of public comments.   

The following citizens addressed the Board: 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, January 19
th

 2011 

Page 5 

 5 

 Mr. Channing Snoddy, Palmyra District, President of Fluvanna Farm Bureau – addressed 

the Board in support of not restructuring the Virginia Cooperative Extension office. 

 Mr. Frank Persico, Cunningham District, a member of the Extension Leadership Council 

and Master Gardener – addressed the Board in support of not restructuring the Virginia 

Cooperative Extension office.  Virginia Association of Counties passed a resolution 

opposing the restructuring of the Virginia Cooperative Extension Service. 

 Mr. Mel Sheridan, Columbia District – addressed the Board in reference to asking the 

Planning District Commission representative to put the VCE restructuring and the 

Department of Forestry on their agenda 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the second segment of public 

comments. 

 

CLOSED MEETING 

MOTION TO ENTER INTO A CLOSED MEETING: 

At 9:39 p.m. Mr. Weaver moved the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors enter 

into a closed meeting, pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.2-3711 of the Code 

of Virginia, 1950, as amended, for the purpose of discussing potential litigation.  

Ms. Booker seconded.  The motion carried by a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Chesser, 

Gooch, Kenney, Booker and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.   ABSENT: None   

 

Ms. Booker left the meeting early due to health reasons. 

 

MOTION TO EXIT A CLOSED MEETING & RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION: 

At 10:14 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the closed meeting be adjourned and the 

Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors convene again in open session. Mr. 

Kenney seconded.  The motion carried by a vote of 4-0.  AYES:  Chesser, Gooch, 

Kenney and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.   ABSENT: Booker 

 

MOTION: 

At 10:15 p.m., the following resolution was adopted by the Fluvanna County 

Board of Supervisors, following a closed meeting held Wednesday, January 19
th

 

2011 on motion of Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. Chesser and carried by the 

following vote:  AYES:  Chesser, Gooch, Kenney and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.   

ABSENT: Booker   
 
“BE IT RESOLVED to the best of my knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully 

exempted from open meeting requirements under Section 2.2-3711-A of the Code of Virginia, 

1950, as amended, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by 

which the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting.” 

 

 MOTION: 

Mr. Chesser moved to direct the County Attorney to initiate amendment to section 

2-7-2 and 2-7-3 of the Fluvanna County Code to reflect the State Code of Virginia 

on the County Seal.  Mr. Kenney seconded.   The motion carried with a vote of 4-

0.  AYES:  Chesser, Gooch, Kenney and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.   ABSENT: 

Booker       

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, January 19
th

 2011 

Page 6 

 6 

ADJOURN 

MOTION: 

At 10:17 p.m., Mr. Kenney moved to adjourn the meeting of Wednesday, January 

19
th

 2011.  Mr. Chesser seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 4-0.  AYES:  

Chesser, Gooch, Kenney and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.   ABSENT: Booker     

 

 

 

 

        

John Y. Gooch, Chairman



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, January 19
th

 2011 

Page 7 

 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, January 19
th

 2011 

Page 8 

 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, January 19
th

 2011 

Page 9 

 9 

 



 

 

MOTION: I move the regular meeting minutes of the Fluvanna County Board of 

Supervisors for Wednesday, February 2
nd

, 2011 be adopted. 
 

 

AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  February 16
th

 2011 

 

 

SUBJECT: Adoption of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors regular meeting 

minutes. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

TIMING: Routine 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

DISCUSSION:  None 

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  None 

 

Staff:  Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

Copy:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

Comments: 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, February 2
nd

, 2011 

Page 1 

 1 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

February 2
nd

, 2011 

2:00 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice-Chairman  

    Joe Chesser 

    Donald W. Weaver 

Mozell H. Booker 

Chris S. Fairchild 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT: None 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

    Fred Payne, County Attorney 

    Renee Hoover, Finance Director 

    Darren K. Coffey, Planning Director 

    Mary L. Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 
Chairman Gooch called the regular meeting of February 2

nd
 2011 to order at 2:00 p.m. in the 

Circuit Courtroom of the New Courts Building in Palmyra, Virginia and the Pledge of 

Allegiance was recited after which, Chairman Gooch called for a moment of silence. 

 

REPORTS 

Mr. Jay Scudder, County Administrator, reported on the following topics: 

 Virginia Cooperative Extension Restructuring – reviewed with the Board a draft letter 

written to the Dean of Agricultural of Virginia Tech in support of not restructuring the 

Virginia Cooperative Extension offices. 

 Health Insurance – apprised the Board of possible changes with health insurance. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the first round of public comments. 

The following citizen addressed the Board: 

 Melissa Markiewicz, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in support Steger Creek 

Subdivision Streets becoming state roadways 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the first round of public 

comments. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items were approved under the consent agenda: 

  

MOTION: 

  Mr. Weaver moved to approve the consent agenda which consisted of: 

 Minutes of January 5
th

 2011 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, February 2
nd

, 2011 

Page 2 

 2 

Mr. Chesser seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 3-0-2.  AYES:  Gooch, 

Weaver, and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSTAINED:  Booker and Fairchild 

ABSENT:  Kenney.    

 

Mr. Kenney arrived at 2:06 

 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

Renee Hoover, Finance Director, addressed the Board regarding the accounts payable.  The 

Board requested Ms. Hoover to research the payment made to the Scottsville Volunteer Rescue 

Squad. 

MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved the Accounts Payable from December 23, 2010 through 

January 22, 2011 and payroll for the month of December 2010 in the amount of 

$1,204,090.48 be ratified.   Mr. Weaver seconded.  The motion carried with a vote 

of 6-0.  AYES:  Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Booker, Fairchild and Weaver.   

NAYS:  None.   ABSENT: None. 

    
 Fund 100 General Fund                $    540,586.26 

 Fund 120 Recreation                     902.87 

 Fund 302 Capital                            57,330.44 

 Fund 401 Debt Services                   33,036.57 

 Fund 502 Utility (Sewer)     19,605.89 

 Fund 505 Fork Union Sanitary District      17,949.31 

Payroll                                  534,679.14 

Total                     $    1,204,090.48 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

None 

 

PRESENTATIONS: 

EMS Coverage and Needs 

Mr. Leonard Bozza, EMS Committee Representative, provided the Board with information on 

current data and future improvement needs for the Fluvanna County Emergency Medical 

Services. 

 

Ms. Booker left the meeting at 3:00 p.m. to attend the public comment hearing for Envoy of Fork 

Union regarding the addition of 60 beds.  This expands the facility and demonstrates critical need 

before the State of Virginia Department of Public Health Board. 

 

School Board Budget Presentation 

Ms. Gena Keller, Superintendent and Ed Breslauer, Director of Finance, presented the Board 

with an overview of the current progress of their proposed FY12 School Budget and reviewed 

the priorities for Fluvanna County Schools.  A Joint Work Session is scheduled for February 23, 

2011 at 6:00p.m. in the Fluvanna County Circuit Court Room. 

 

County Budget Presentation 

Mr. Jay Scudder, County Administrator, presented the Board with a recommended FY12 Budget 

with changes and considerations behind it.  Mr. Kenney mentioned that the Board needs to 

decide what their priorities are with the limited funds.  Chairman Gooch asked the Board 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, February 2
nd

, 2011 

Page 3 

 3 

members to consider what their top three priorities would be and share them at the February 16, 

2011 meeting. 

 

2010 Development Activity Report 

Mr. Darren K. Coffey, Planning Director, presented the Board with an overview of development 

activity during 2010 along with the long range projects that were planned and completed. 

 

ACTION MATTERS 
Resolutions for Steger Creek Subdivision 

Mr. Darren K. Coffey, Planning Director, addressed the Board regarding two resolutions for 

Steger Creek Subdivision Streets to become State Roadways. 

MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved to approve the resolution for a surety amount of $12,000.00 to 

expire on March 31, 2012, in order for Steger Creek Subdivision’s two streets to 

be taken into the state roadway system.  Further, I move to approve the resolution 

requesting that the Virginia Department of transportation accept Meade Lane and 

Naylor Lane into the Secondary System of State Highways.  Mr. Chesser 

seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, 

Fairchild, Chesser and Kenney.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  Booker.    

 

Appointment of Boards, Commissions and Committees  

Appointment/Audit Committee 

MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved to appoint Donald Weaver to the Audit Committee with a 

term to begin immediately and to terminate on December 31
st
 2011.  Mr. Chesser 

seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Chesser, Gooch, 

Kenney, Weaver and Fairchild.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  Booker. 

 

Appointment/Community Policy Management Team  

MOTION: 

Mr. Chesser moved to appoint Mozell Booker to the Community Policy 

Management Team with a term to begin immediately and to terminate on 

December 31
st
 2011.  Mr. Chesser seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-

0.  AYES:  Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Weaver and Fairchild.  NAYS:  None.  

ABSENT:  Booker. 

 

Appointment/Piedmont Workforce Council 

MOTION: 

Mr. Chesser moved to appoint Shaun Kenney to the Piedmont Workforce Council 

with a term to begin immediately and to terminate on December 31
st
 2011.  Mr. 

Fairchild seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Chesser, 

Gooch, Kenney, Weaver and Fairchild.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  Booker. 

 

Appointment/Palmyra Wastewater Committee 

MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved to appoint Chris Fairchild to the Palmyra Wastewater 

Committee with a term to begin immediately and to terminate on December 31
st
 

2011.  Mr. Chesser seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, February 2
nd

, 2011 

Page 4 

 4 

Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Weaver and Fairchild.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  

Booker. 

 

Appointment/Thomas Jefferson Planning Economic Commission 

MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved to appoint Chris Fairchild to the Thomas Jefferson Planning 

Economic Commission with a term to begin immediately and to terminate on 

December 31
st
 2011.  Mr. Chesser seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-

0.  AYES:  Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Weaver and Fairchild.  NAYS:  None.  

ABSENT:  Booker. 

 

Appointment/Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission (TJPDC) 

MOTION: 

Mr. Fairchild moved to appoint Keith Smith to the TJPDC Citizen Representative 

position with a term to begin immediately and to terminate on December 31
st
 

2011, filling the unexpired term of Mr. Chris Fairchild.  Mr. Chesser seconded.  

The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Weaver 

and Fairchild.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  Booker. 

 

Appointment/Planning Commission 

MOTION: 

Mr. Fairchild moved to appoint Steven M. Nichols to the Planning Commission 

Rivanna District position with a term to begin immediately and to terminate on 

June 30
th

 2012, filling the unexpired term of Elizabeth Fortune, who has resigned.  

Mr. Chesser seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Chesser, 

Gooch, Kenney, Weaver and Fairchild.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  Booker. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

Chairman asked for an update in reference to the concerns of SUP 10:04/Central Meadows.  Mr. 

Darren K. Coffey, Planning Director, addressed the board that this is a legitimate business and 

this is a legal special use permit. 

 

Mr. Chesser wanted to recognize that Fluvanna County has a lot of volunteers and their efforts 

are greatly appreciated. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

None 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #2 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the second round of public comments.   

The following citizens addressed the Board: 

 Mr. Scott Carpenter, Rivanna District, Elected President of the Fire and Rescue 

Association and Elected Vice-Chief for Lake Monticello Fire and Rescue – addressed the 

Board in reference to funding fire and safety services. 

 Mr. Bob Leapold, Rivanna District, Chairman of the Electoral Board– addressed the 

Board regarding the redistricting of Fluvanna County. 

 Mr. Dennis Holder, Kent Store – addressed the Board in reference to the definition of a 

Small Home Industry. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, February 2
nd

, 2011 

Page 5 

 5 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the second segment of public 

comments. 

 

ADJOURN 

MOTION: 

At 5:01 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved to adjourn the meeting of Wednesday, February 

2
nd

, 2011.  Mr. Kenney seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  

Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Weaver and Fairchild.   NAYS:  None.   ABSENT: 

Booker     

 

 

 

 

        

John Y. Gooch, Chairman



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, February 2
nd

, 2011 

Page 6 

 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, February 2
nd

, 2011 

Page 7 

 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, February 2
nd

, 2011 

Page 8 

 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, February 2
nd

, 2011 

Page 9 

 9 

 



 

 

MOTION: I move that the Board of Supervisors adopt the amendment to the 

ordinance entitled “An Ordinance to Amend the Fluvanna County Code by the Addition 

in Chapter 2 of an Article 7, Sections 2-7-2 and 2-7-3, Concerning the Adoption and Use 

of the County’s Official Seal”. 
 

 

AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  February 16
th

 2011 

 

 

SUBJECT: The County’s interest in the seal and its right to control the seal’s use. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt the amended ordinance that gives the County a 

property right in the seal which it is entitled to protect. 

 

TIMING: Routine 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  This action is consistent with state statue. 

 

DISCUSSION:  The County Attorney’s office recommends “The seal of Fluvanna 

County shall be deemed the property of the County; and no persons shall exhibit, display, 

or in any manner utilize the seal or any facsimile or representation of the seal of Fluvanna 

County for nongovernmental purposes unless such use is specifically authorized by law.” 

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  Since the official seal adoption, the seal has been used on 

County stationery, the arm patches for the Sheriff’s office and a number of different 

applications.  In addition, the Board of Supervisors has authorized a few users not 

directly employed by the County and has declined to authorize its use by a few others.  

 

 

Staff: Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

Attachments:  Ordinance 

  Public Hearing Advertisement 

Copy:  

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

 
 

1



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FLUVANNA COUNTY CODE BY THE 

AMENDMENT OF CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 7, SECTIONS 2-7-2 AND 2-7-3, 

CONCERNING THE USE OF THE COUNTY’S OFFICIAL SEAL 

 

 Be it ordained by the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors, pursuant to Virginia 

Code Section 15.2-1402, that the County Code be, and is hereby, amended, in Chapter 2, 

Article 7, Sections 2-7-2 and 2-7-3, as follows: 

 
Article 7.  Official County Seal 

 

Sec 2-7-2.   Seal Deemed Property of the County; Unauthorized Use Prohibited. 

 

The seal of Fluvanna County shall be deemed the property of the County; and no 

persons shall exhibit, display, or in any manner utilize the seal or any facsimile or 

representation of the seal of Fluvanna County for nongovernmental purposes unless such 

use is specifically authorized by law. 

  

Sec. 2-7-3.   Violation and Penalty. 

 

Any person violating the provisions of this section shall be punished by a fine of 

not more than $100, or by imprisonment for not more than 30 days or both. 

 

2



3





























MOTION: I move that the Board of Supervisors approve Fluvanna County Animal 
Response Team to apply for a Pet Sheltering Grant with Charlottesville/Albemarle 
Emergency Management for emergency pet sheltering to develop regional equipment 
reserves. 
 
AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  February 16, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: Pet Sheltering Grant 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approval 
 
TIMING: Immediate – grant must be submitted by 2/14/11 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: None; there is no local match. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  Fluvanna County, with Charlottesville/Albemarle, would be 
required to sign a Regional Partnership Agreement, following VDACS guidelines. 
 
DISCUSSION: The Virginia Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services 
(VDACS) and the Virginia Department of Emergency Management (VDEM) are making 
available grants of up to $60,000 each, to city and county governments for emergency pet 
sheltering. This grant program has a regional focus. VDACS will not accept applications 
from individual localities but from only two or more localities that apply together for a 
regional project. 
 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  
 
 
Staff: Jacqueline A. Meyers, PhD 
 
Copy:  
 
Attachments:  
 
 
For County Administrator’s Use Only: 
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
Jay Scudder, County Administrator  



MOTION: I move to supplement the construction budget for the Kents Store Firehouse 

Project by moving $94,035.73 from the capital reserve account (or other account that the Board 

of Supervisors selects) account 302 94153 3175 to the construction contract expense line for the 

Kents Store Firehouse known as account 302 94145 3176.  

 

AGENDA   BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  February 16, 2011 

 

SUBJECT: Kents Store Firehouse Construction Project Update 

 

ISSUE: An update of the progress of the Kents Store Firehouse will be made along with a 

request to update the budget for this project.   

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the changes to the budget for this project. 

 

TIMING: Routine 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: The Board of Supervisors approved a change order of the pre-

engineered contract with CMS, Inc. on December 16, 2009 in the amount of $1,087,233.90.  In 

the same meeting the project budget was set as $1,151,842 which includes the contract with 

CMS, Inc. along with contingencies, telephone system, and inspection services. During 

construction several unanticipated expenses were encountered.  These include the following: 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

The difference between the contract amount of $1,087,233.90 and the budget amount or 

$1,151,842 originally set for this project allowed for a contingency amount of $64,608.10.  This 

was used for items such as the pump station needed to connect to the existing sewer system 

installed at the ARC building, telephone system for the building, utility pole move along with 

conduit for telephone company, asbestos testing, construction testing, county fees, bollards for 

propane tank, added drains for the site, added curbing to help drainage, utility pole relocation for 

the power company.    

 

The items listed in the table above were beyond those anticipated for this project.  Unsuitable 

soil was encountered in the rear of the parking.  This required an extensive repair including an 

underdrain and stone placement.  Additionally, it was not anticipated that the reconnection of the 

communications tower would require someone to climb the pole to rewire the antennae from the 

top of the structure to the new building.  Also, the utilities required additional moneys:  CVEC 

Item Amount 

Sewer Electrical 

connection to the 

Firehouse 

$8160.00 

Unsuitable Soil $29,902.80 

Communication 

Tower Equipment 

Relocation 

$6876.45 

 

CVEC Conduit $11,900.00 

CenturyLink $3419.00 

Total $60,258.25 



Kents Store Firehouse Construction Project Update 

Agenda 16 February 2011 

 

 

 

  Page 2 

said that the money that they quoted did not include the conduit and that we were responsible for 

installing it; and when Embarq became CenturyLink the cost that they quoted us for their utility 

pole work went up simply because they became a larger company.   Therefore, the money that 

was not anticipated for this project totaled $60,258.25. 

 

An added issue that was not anticipated includes a simple miscommunication between Public 

Works and Finance.  This project (Kents Store) was combined with Fork Union at the beginning.  

When Fork Union was split off and the budget set for that project, some of the budget from 

Kents Store was moved to it.  Therefore, the budget for Kents Store started out as $1,118,064.52 

instead of $1,151,842.00.  This was an initial shortfall of $33,777.48.   

 

Consequently, the budget adjustment that is being requested is a total of $60,258.25 plus 

$33,777.48 which equals $94,035.73. 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS: None 

 

DISCUSSION: As an update on the schedule for this project the Kents Store Firehouse is 

nearly completed.  The old firehouse has been torn down and the fire company is moved in to the 

new building.  The contract time is scheduled to finish in March.  The project will be completed 

ahead of schedule.   

 

The budget information is presented in the fiscal section above.  

 

A presentation with pictures of the building will be made at the Board of Supervisors’ Meeting.  

This will present the project throughout the construction.  The pictures were not printed and 

attached to this document in order to save paper and ink.  They have been included on the web 

page for citizens to view if they desire. 

 

HISTORY: This item has been presented to the Boards of Supervisors many times with these 

highlights of Board actions: 

1) Creation of the Firehouse Building Committee – September 3, 2008 

2) Directed by Board of Supervisors to pursue a pre-engineered building – 

December 3, 2008 

3) Award of the Design Build Contract to CMS, Inc. – October 7, 2009 

4) Modification of the Contract with CMS, Inc – December 16, 2009  

 

 

Staff: John Robins, Director of Public Works 

*************************** 
For County Administrator’s Use Only 

Comments: 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 








































	Agenda
	Minutes 1-19-2011
	Minutes 2-2-2011
	Ordinance for County Seal
	Resolution to VPSA for Available Savings
	Pet Sheltering Grant
	Kents Store Firehouse Construction Update
	5-Year Financial Forecast



